
PRE-SUBMITTAL MEETING QUESTIONS 
 

Funding Questions 

These questions pertain to budget amounts, schedules, disbursement, and financial 
requirements. 

● Financial Records: Which financials are required: FY2025 Budget or FY2026? 
Applicants should submit the most recently completed fiscal year financials 
(typically FY 2024 or FY 2025 actuals), along with the current adopted operating 
budget. Audited financials are required if available. 
 

● Funding Schedule: What is the funding schedule for these grants, and when does 
funding start and end? Funding follows the HUD Program Year (PY), generally 
October 1 – September 30. Contracts are executed after HUD approval of the 
County’s Action Plan. 
 

● Multi-year Requests: Can requests be for multiple years (e.g., a 3-year request)? 
Requests are typically one program year only. Multi-year projects must be reapplied 
for annually and are not guaranteed renewal. 
 

● Operating Expenses: Can operating expenses, such as staff costs to operate a 
program, be included? Yes. Eligible operating expenses, including program staff 
salaries and benefits, may be included if directly tied to the approved activity and 
allowable under the specific funding source. 
 

● Disbursement: If awarded, how are the funds disbursed? Funds are provided on a 
reimbursement basis after costs are incurred, submitted, and approved. Advance 
payments are generally not allowed. 
 

● Leveraged Dollars: What is the County looking for regarding leveraged dollars? The 
County looks for committed, documented leveraged funds that demonstrate 
sustainability and readiness. Leverage strengthens competitiveness but may not 
always be required. 
 

● Leverage vs. Match: Is the leverage percentage considered the “match” amount? 
Leverage is broader than match. Match refers to required contributions, while 
leverage includes additional non-required funds supporting the project. 
 

● Public Service Cap: Are both CDBG applications capped at 15% for Public Service? 
Yes. Public Service activities are capped at 15% of the County’s total annual CDBG 



allocation (plus prior-year program income), per HUD regulations. 
 

● Match Source: Can the match come from unrestricted foundation grant funds? Yes. 
Unrestricted foundation grants may be used as match as long as they are 
committed, allowable, and documented. 
 

● Total Allocation: How much funding has been allocated for the entire RFP? The total 
allocation is determined annually by HUD. Applicants should refer to the RFP or 
County presentation for the estimated PY 2025 funding amount. 
 

● Maximum Request: What is the maximum amount an applicant can request? There is 
no universal maximum, but awards are subject to program caps, activity type, and 
available funds. Historically, large infrastructure requests receive greater scrutiny. 
 

● Match Requirements: Is there a cash or in-kind matching requirement, and if so, what 
is it? CDBG generally does not require a match, but ESG and HOME programs often 
do. Match may be cash or in-kind, depending on the funding source. 
 

● Funding Methodology: Has the allocation methodology changed for PY 2025, and 
how much weight is given to demonstrated need versus population? The allocation 
methodology has not fundamentally changed. Funding decisions weigh demonstrated 
need, LMI benefit, project readiness, capacity, and geographic equity. 
 

● Engineering Costs: When are engineering costs eligible for reimbursement, and must 
they occur within the same program year as construction? Engineering and design 
costs are eligible once environmental clearance is complete and must occur within 
the same program year or approved contract period as construction. 

● Budget Worksheet: Do you want us to submit an updated version of the 2025 
worksheet? The personnel tab includes FICA Rates, but we were not sure if they have 
changed or if that has been updated and we can't manipulate them ourselves) Yes 

● Cash Match: On page 7 of the RFP, under Leverage/March Funds, it states that “ESG 
activities require the applicant to match County ESG funding dollar-for-dollar.” We 
would appreciate clarification on whether this dollar-for-dollar match is required to be 
cash only, or whether eligible in-kind or non-cash contributions may be used to satisfy 
the match requirement.  

Match can be provided in the form of either:  

• Cash match, which is cash expended for allowable costs by the recipient or 
subrecipient;  



• In-kind match (also called non-cash match), which is the value of any real property, 
equipment, goods, services, or donated building contributed by the recipient or 
subrecipient’s ESG project, provided that, if the contribution had been paid for with 
ESG funds, the cost would have been allowable.  

Match requirements can be met with any combination of cash match and in-kind 
match provided that the combined value of all provided match meets the minimum 
match requirement established by the relevant grant agreement. More information 
about the eligible types of match can be found in the ESG Program interim rule at 24 
CFR 576.201(d). 
 

 
Eligibility Questions 

These questions focus on geographic restrictions, organization types, and specific project 
qualifications. 

● Geographic Map: What type of map is needed if the program covers all of Fort Bend 
County? A service area map clearly showing coverage of Fort Bend County 
boundaries is sufficient. Census tract overlays are recommended if serving LMI 
populations. 
 

● Sugar Land Exclusion: Why is Sugar Land excluded? (Note: The document notes they 
no longer provide CDBG funding). Sugar Land is excluded because it receives its own 
HUD entitlement funding and does not participate in the County’s CDBG program. 
 

● Warming Centers: Can warming centers be included under emergency shelters? Yes. 
Warming centers may qualify as Emergency Shelter activities if they meet HUD’s 
definition and operate during declared or documented extreme weather events. 
 

● Zip Code Restrictions: Is there a zip code restriction, or is it just within Fort Bend 
County limits (excluding Katy, Houston, Missouri City, and Western Lakes Pearland)? 
Eligibility is based on jurisdictional boundaries, not zip codes. Excluded areas 
include Katy, Houston, Missouri City, Western Lakes Pearland, and Sugar Land. 
 

● Out-of-County Nonprofits: Can a nonprofit outside Fort Bend County apply if they 
place staff at organizations within the County? Yes. Nonprofits headquartered outside 
Fort Bend County may apply if services are delivered within the County and benefit 
eligible residents. 
 

● Collaboratives: Can collaboratives of nonprofits apply for CDBG social services 



funding? Yes. Collaboratives may apply, but one organization must serve as the lead 
applicant and assume contractual and compliance responsibility. 
 

● Renovations: If a project involves renovating space for a clinic (as an FQHC), which 
application should be used? Renovation of clinic space should be submitted under the 
CDBG Public Facilities and Improvements application, not Public Services. 
 

● Street Outreach: Does “street outreach” include attending expos or community events 
to promote the organization? Street outreach includes direct engagement with 
unsheltered individuals. General tabling at expos or events alone typically does not 
qualify unless tied to direct outreach services. 

 
● Non-shelter Services: Can applicants who do not provide shelter request funding for 

social services related to homelessness? Yes. Applicants that do not operate shelters 
may request funding for homelessness-related supportive services, if eligible under 
ESG or CDBG Public Services. 
 

● Sewer Rehabilitation: Are the Edgewood Drive and Country Club areas eligible for 
sewer rehab, and what data (LMISD, census, etc.) determines this? Eligibility is 
determined using LMI Service Area Data (LMISD), Census data, and/or income 
surveys. County staff confirm final eligibility. 
 

● Water vs. Sewer Policy: Is sewer rehab ineligible if water rehab was previously done 
on the same street, and are there exceptions for system failures? Prior water 
improvements do not automatically disqualify sewer rehab. Exceptions may be made 
for system failure, health risks, or regulatory compliance issues. 

● Emergency Shelter: Our shelter is open on an as needed basis for extreme weather 
events. Is this an eligible activity?  

Yes. HUD explicitly allows seasonal shelters under the Emergency Shelter component. 
ESG funds may be used for: 

• Essential services such as case management, transportation, or outreach 

• Shelter operations such as utilities, rent, security, and supplies 

• Renovation or conversion of buildings used as emergency shelters 

HUD states that when ESG funds are used for essential services or operations, the 
shelter must operate for at least the period during which ESG funds are provided. For 
seasonal shelters, this period can match the contract period in the subrecipient 
agreement. 



That means a shelter that opens only during extreme weather (e.g., cold snaps, 
hurricanes, heat emergencies) can be eligible, as long as: 

• The operating period is defined in the ESG contract 

• The shelter meets all ESG standards (e.g., habitability, HMIS participation, equal 
access) 

• The shelter serves people who meet HUD’s definition of homeless 

• Case Management: Does the definition of Case Management include case 
management staff? We want to request funds for two of our case managers. 

Yes — ESG (Emergency Solutions Grants) can be used to pay salaries for case 
managers, as long as the work they perform fits within the eligible ESG activity 
categories. 

• Food: Can we request funds for the purchase of food for our clients? 
Food is eligible only under the Emergency Shelter component, and only as part of 
shelter operations. HUD’s regulation at 24 CFR 576.102 allows ESG funds to be used 
for “operating emergency shelters,” which includes costs necessary for the day to day 
functioning of the shelter. 
That means ESG can cover: 
• Food served to clients staying in an emergency shelter 
• Snacks or meals required for basic shelter operations 
• Food used in child or youth programs inside the shelter 
These costs must be tied directly to the shelter’s operation and bene�it people 
currently residing in the ESG funded shelter. 
 

• National Objective: Is there a map of the county or grid available that will show 
blighted areas in Fort Bend County? (This will help identify a focus project). The 
following is the website to check Fort Bend County Public Reference Map 
 

• Projects: We are trying to see if there is funding for a sewar line extension along 
Clodine Road. All the properties across the street and nearby area have access to the 
sewar system. There are multiple parcels that would benefit from this extension 
however because a lift station would be needed the cost of the infrastructure would 
likely be above $2M. If CDBG could cover even part of it, between the FWS#2, the 
county, and the homeowners we think we could get contributions to fund the project. 
If there is a program that you believe may be applicable for funding all/part of this 
infrastructure project, please advise. Yes, CDBG funds can be used for sewer 
infrastructure projects.  I recommend that you read all the conditions and regulations 
for the program to ensure that you meet the requirements.  For example, LMI, safety 
needs, etc.   
 



General Project Questions 

These questions relate to application procedures, timelines, and project readiness. 

● Insurance: What are the specific requirements for insurance, particularly regarding 
the 30-day notice for policy changes? Applicants must carry general liability, 
workers’ compensation, and auto insurance as applicable. Policies must include a 
30-day written notice of cancellation or change. 
 

● Program Year: Is this for 2025 expenditures or 2026? This RFP corresponds to PY 
2025 funds, typically expended during FY 2026 after HUD approval. 
 

● Timeline: Will the plan for 2026 program funds open in April? Yes. The PY 2026 
planning process generally opens in spring (around April), subject to HUD timelines. 
 

● Submission Process: Do applicants need to submit through e-Civis and follow the CJO 
grant road map? Yes. Applications must be submitted through e-Civis and follow the 
County’s grant road map and checklist. 
 

● Previous Winners: Where can previous winners be viewed to compare prospective 
projects? Past awardees can be viewed in prior Action Plans, Annual Action Plan 
amendments, or Commissioner’s Court agendas on the County website. 
 

● Commissioner's Court: Does the application need to be submitted to the 
commissioner’s court at the time of application or only upon award? Submission to 
Commissioner’s Court is not required at application. Court approval occurs after 
staff recommendations and before contract execution. 
 

● Decision Date: When will decisions be made? Funding recommendations are typically 
made late summer, with final approval following HUD Action Plan approval. 
 

● Format: Are there format requirements (font, etc.) other than submitting as a PDF? 
Applications must be submitted as PDFs. No special font requirements beyond clarity 
and completeness. 
 

● Multiple Applications: Can an organization apply for more than one grant? Yes. 
Organizations may submit multiple applications, provided each is for a distinct 
eligible activity. 
 

● Shovel-Ready Status: Regarding the requirement for projects to be shovel-ready 



within the program year, how should applicants plan given extended funding 
timelines? Applicants should demonstrate site control, environmental readiness, 
and preliminary design even if construction occurs later in the program year. 
 

● Contingency Funds: How are the 10% contingency funds treated while approved 
projects await funding authorization? Approved contingency funds are reserved but 
not released until authorization. They remain tied to the approved project scope. 
 

● Application Strength: What are the County's recommendations to strengthen 
infrastructure-related CDBG applications for PY2025?  

The County recommends: 

● Clear LMI benefit documentation 

● Demonstrated site control 

● Preliminary engineering/design 

● Realistic timelines 

● Strong operations and maintenance plans 

● Evidence of leveraged funding 

 

● Award Notification: when can we expect to receive award notification?  Around 
2/27/2026 

 
● Documents: For the affidavit of ownership or control, could you clarify what the 

debtor section relates to? Is this for active cases on owed debt? If this does not apply, 
do we leave it blank? 

Practical Interpretation (Based on HUD/CDBG Practice) 

• The debtor section is typically intended to disclose current, active debt relationships 
that could: 

o Affect ownership or control of the property, or 
o Create a financial interest or encumbrance relevant to the project. 

• This usually includes: 
o Mortgages 
o Liens 
o Deeds of trust 
o Notes payable 
o Other recorded or enforceable debt tied to the property or applicant 



• It generally does not require disclosure of paid-off or closed debts, unless 
specifically requested 

If It Does Not Apply 

Best practice is not to leave the section blank. 

Instead: 

• Write “N/A – No outstanding debt or debtor relationships applicable”, or 
• Check any “None” box if provided. 

This avoids the appearance of an omission and confirms compliance. 

● Documents: Do I type NOT APPLICABLE at the top of the Local Government Officers 
Conflicts Disclosure Statement and Disclosure of Lobbying Activities forms and include 
them or is it ok not include them in the application packet if we feel that they do not 
pertain to our organization? If they do not apply to your organization, please put NOT 
APPLICABLE at the top and YES please include them in the application packet. 

● Documents: Forms that need to be signed - are we required to submit the following 
forms (anti-collusion, Document 00455 Affidavit of Ownership, Certificate for Grants, 
Loans, Agreements) - we have not submitted these in the past, and are a bit confused 
as to how they apply this year ...?  Yes 

● Grant Timeline: Is there a specific grant timeline? (i.e., expected start and end date)? 
There is no specific timeline, however contract start date is usually 60-90 days after 
award notification.  Contract end date will depend on the project or program timeline.  
Projects that are shovel-ready will be prioritized.   

● Grant Submissions: Inquiring about submitting two requests in a single proposal. You 
may submit as many proposals as you would like if they fit the criteria for the program. 

● Reporting Requirements: Can you describe the reporting requirements? 

All ESG-funded projects (except victim service providers) must enter client-level data 
into HMIS following HUD’s HMIS Data Standards. 

• Client demographics 

• Project entry/exit data 

• Service transactions 

• Bed and unit inventory 

• Performance outcomes 

• Persons served: Is there an expectation for the number of people served? 



ESG does not require a minimum number of people served.  But HUD does require 
recipients to set local performance standards, and those often include expectations 
around numbers served, bed utilization, or outcomes. 

• Awards:  Will partial awards be made?  Yes, it is possible that partial funding awards 
will be made depending on the number of applications received. 

• Renovations: For renovating a space, does a copy of the lease agreement or 
additional paperwork like mockups need to be provided at the time of application? 
Yes, a lease agreement or deed must be submitted as evidence of site control. 

• Documents: Does the affidavit of ownership or control need to be filled out by us, 
the applicant? If so, could we receive more guidance?  Yes, it will be filled out by the 
applicant and should include stakeholders, including board members.  If you have 
any specific questions, please submit them in writing so we can provide clarification. 

• Processes: Is this an internal grant for only county departments? Do we need to 
submit into e-Civis and go through the grant office? No, this is open to the public. No, 
you do not have to submit it into e-Civis or go through the grant office. 
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